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CENTRAL INTELLIGENCE AGENCY
" Washington, D.C. 20505

Genatal Coupsal

22 June 2004

The Honorable Jack L. Goldsmith 112
Assistant Attorney General

Office of Lagal Counsel

Dapartment of Tuatice

Washington, D.C, 20530

Dear Mr. Goldsmith:

(‘;éf/‘. ‘NE)  This responds te your 18 June 2004
letter to the Director of Central Intelligence in which you
suggested modifications to the Inspactor General's report on the
Central Intalligence Agency'’s (CIA) Counterterrorism Detention
and Interrogation Activities, We have forwarded to the Inspector
General your letter and its attached memorandum and addendum
containing your suggested changes to the report. The Ingpector
General will consult with you and determine whether the report
should bs Bupplemented with the changes you hava recommendead.

(p&/ //NF) We will forward the Inspector General’ns
report to the intelligence oversight committees this week. As
you know, Appendix ¢ of the report includes a copy of tha
1 August 2002 legal opinion from your office to OIA ragarding the
use of qertain interrogation techniques with Abu Zubaydah,

Sincaraly,

i BT YA O

Scott W. Muller
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Washington, D.C, 20505 ' Inspector General
: . 703-874-2555

2 July 2004

Mr. Jack L. Goldsmith III
"Assistant Attorney General
Office of Legal Counsel
Department of Justice
Washington, D.C. ‘20530

Dear Mr. Gdldsmith:

QT§7/ This is in response to your letter to
the Director of Central Intelligence (DCI), dated 18 June
2004, and a memorandum of the same date addressed to me,
regarding the "Special Review: Counterterrorism Deterition _
and Interrogation Activities.” The DCI has requested that I
respond directly to you. '

to develop Tecommendations to strengthen the management and
conduct of the activities. we limited the scope of the
Special Review to Agency activities and the perspective of
Agency officers regarding thé activities under review. 1In
doing so, we attributed factual assertions to the officers
making the assertions, rather than drawing factual
conclusions that might be inaccurate or be viewed
differently'by those outside the Agency. -

(U//FOUOD) We have carefully reviewed the comments of
the Department of Justice regarding the Special Review. We
concluded that it would not be practicable to recall the
Review and integrate those comments into the body of the
Review, However, we do agree that it ig appropriate for
those reading the Review to have the benefit of those
comments. Accordingly, we intend to include your 18 June
memorandum with any future circulation of the Review. After
consultation with you, we did transmit the memorandum to the

Chairmen and ranking minority members of the Congressional

TOP/SBQRE/T/ | ; W
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Mr. Jack L. Goldsmith ITI

Intelligence Oversight_Committees. I am also transmittipg’
the memorandum to the Chairman of the Intelligencg Oversight
Board, who has already received a copy of the Review.

(U) If you have any questions regarding these matters
You may contact me or

Sincerely,

John L. Helgerson
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Notic

The attached document contains classified National Security Council Information.
1tis to be read and discussed only by persons authorized by law.
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show or discuss Information contained in the docurent only with persons who
are authorized by law to have such access to this document.
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2 uly 2004

- Mcmorandﬁﬁx fot John Bellinger

: Subsequent to today’s meeting we have had further discussions that clarified the
- extent of taday’s approval of certain techniques. The authorized techniques are those
previously approved for use with Abu Zubaydah (with the sxception of the waterboard)
and the 24 approved by the Secretary of Defense an 16 Aptil 2003 for use by the
Department of Defense. I have relayed this information to the CIA’s Counterterrorist -

Center,

- 60, Jarnes B. Comey

TcyécRBT, 9((
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2 July 2004

c Mcmorandﬁﬁx fot John Bellinger

Subsequent to today’s mesting we have had further discussions that clarified the
- extent of teday’s approval of certain techniques. The authorized techniques ate those
previously approved for use with Abu Zubaydah (with the exception of the waterboard)
and the 24 approved by the Secretary of Defénse on 16 Aptil 2003 for use by the
Department of Defense. I have relayed this information to the CIA’s Counterterrorist .
Center, R o

Scotr-TiNer

 ¢¢, Jarnes B, Comey
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U.S. Department of Justice

Office of Legal Counsel

-

Office of the Assistant Attorney Gengeral Washington, D.C. 20330

Tuly 7, 2004

Mr. Scott W. Muller
General Coungel

Central Intelligence Agency
‘Washington, D.C. 20505

Dear Scott:

{ am writing to follow up on your discussion last Friday with the Attorney General and

the Deputy Attorney (General concerning the use of interrogation techniques on a certain high-
value detainee.

The Deputy Attorney General asked me to emphasize to you that approval of the nine
techniques described in the Memorandum for John Rizzo, Acting General Counsel, Central
Intelligence Agency, from Jay S. Bybee, Assistant Attorney General, Office of Legal Counsel,
Re: Interrogation of al Qaeda Operative (Aug. 1, 2002), presupposes that the techniques will
adhere closely to the assumptions and limitations stated in that memorandum.

The Deputy Attorney General also asked me to emphasize that approval of the twenty-
four interrogation techniques in the Secretary of Defense’s April 15, 2003, memorandumn was
conditioned on the set of “Genetal Safeguards” set out as an attachment to that memorandum,
and on the cross-referenced descriptions of seventeen of the twenty-four techniques set forth in
Army Field Manual 34-54: Intelligence Interrogation {1992). Please ensure that your use of

these techniques follows the “General Safeguards” and the descnpnons and conditions set forth
in the Field Manual. :

Sincerely,

Jagk L. Goldsmith [11
Assistant Attorney General
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Central Intelligence Agency
Office of General Counsel
Washington, D.C, 20505

Date: 06/22/04
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Organization: Department of Justice
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As you know, our office is in the course of finalizing a more deteiled memorandum opinion
analyzing section 2340. We look forward to working with you as we finish that project. Please
' . - contact me or Jennifer Koester if you have any further questions.

Sixcerely,

puty Assistant Attorney General
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U.S. Department of Justice

Office of Legal Counsel :
TOR-SECRETH _NOESRN
Office of the Assistmit Attorney General Washington, D.C. 20530

July 22, 2004

Scott W. Muller, Esq.
General Counsel

Central Intelligence Agency
Washington, D.C. 20505

Dear Scott;

We have been asked whether a certain detainee in the war on terrorism may be subjected
to the “waterboard” interrogation technique, consistent with 18 U.S.C. §§ 2340 and 2340A. In
connection with this opinion, we would be grateful if you could provide us with a precise
description of the technique. As you know, the CIA Office of Inspector General, in its Special
Review: Counterterrorism Detention and Interrogation Activities (September 2001-October
2003) (May 7, 2004) (“OIG Review”), raised several questions about whether the technique, as
actually used, conforms to the description in the Memorandum for John A. Rizzo, Acting
General Counsel, CIA, from Jay S. Bybee, Assistant Attorney General, Office of Legal Counsel,
Re: Interrogation of al Qaeda Operative (Aug, 1, 2002). For example, the OIG Review
repeatedly disputes that the technique, in practice, matches the technique as used at the U.S. Air
Force Survival, Evasion, Resistance, and Escape (“SERE”) training program, although our
opinion assurned that we were addressing the SERE technique. See OIG Review at 21 n.26, 37,
44. It would greatly assist us if you could address the details of the technique, including whether
the technique on which we would now opine differs in any respect from the one considered in
our earlier memorandum. If there are differences but you believe those differences should not
alter our conclusion that the technique is lawful under the statute, we would appreciate receiving
an explanation of your view, including any medical or other factual support on which you rely.
Finally, we would be grateful if you could provide information about the facts and circumstances
- of this detainee, including his medical and psychological condmon of the sort provided with
respect to the detainee discussed in our earlier opinion. )&-‘%

W’I‘» YNDBORN
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Thank you for your assistance. (U)

TOP SECRET.

()

Daniel B. Levin .
Acting Assistant Attorney General






@ffice of the Attarnep General
* Washington, B, ¢. 20530

Tuly 22, 2004

John E. McLaughlin

Acting Director of Central Intelligence
Central Intelligence Agency
Washington, D.C. 20505

Dear John:

This letter will confirm my advice that, in the contemplated interrogation o_
the use of the following interrogation techniques outside territory subject to United States
jurisdiction would not violate the United States Constitution or any statute or treaty obligation of
the United States, including Article 16 of the Convention Against Torture and Other Cruel,

S Inbuman, or Degrading Treatment or Punishment, adopted Dec, 10, 1984, S. Treaty Doc, No,

‘ 100-20 (1988) (entered into force June 26, 1987): the nine techniques (other than the
waterboard) described in the Memorandum for J ohn A. Rizzo, Acting General Counsel, Central
Intelligence Agency, from Jay S. Bybee, Assistant Attorney General, Re: Interrogation of al
Qaeda Operative (Aug. 1, 2002), subject to the assumptions and limitations stated there;

&

Sincerely,
C John D. Ashcroft ‘
Attorney Genera] '

LK
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Central ntelligence Agency

mxsmagm DL, 0505

5 August 2004

Transmitted by Secure Facsimile
Dan Levin

Acting Assistant Attorney Gen&ral
Office of Lagal Counsal :
Dapartment of Justice
Washington, DC 20530

Dear Mr. Levin:

/i (YC)  This letter responds to the questions
you and members of your office raised in a mesting vesterday
with officers from the DCI Counterterrorist Center regarding use
of the waterboard a3 an interrogation technigue, Specifically,
you asked whether the Agancy had limitz in place for the
duration of each application of water, for each session of the
watéerboard, for how many waterboard szessions may be held in any
onme day, and for how many days the waterboard technique could be
applied, Answers to your gquestions follow. :

‘ﬁyé?/ f;Kﬁ Our guidelines,

a. Approvals for use of the waterboard last for only 30
days. During that 30-day period, the waterboard may not be used
on mere than 20 days during that 30-day period.

b, The number of waterboard sessions on 2 given day may
not exceed Iour.

c. A waterboard "session” 1s the period of time in which &
subiject is strapped to the waterboard before being removed. It
may involve multiple applications of water. You were informed
yesterday that our Office of Medical Services had established a
Z20-minute time limit for waterboard sessions. That was in

® 1 i, o

e
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HANDLE VIA . JOINTLY
Dan Levin, Esq.

error. OMS has not established any time limit for a waterboard
session, '

d. An "application" during & waterboard session is the
time period in which water iz poured on the c¢loth being held on
the subject's face. Under the DCI interrogation guidelines, the
time of total contact of water with the face will not axceed 40
seconds, The vast majority of applications are lesa than 40 .
geconds, many for fewer than 10 ssconds. Individual
applications lasting 10 ssconds or longer will be limited to no
mere than 10 applications during any ong watarboard session.

(U//FOU0} If you have any gquestions, or would like
briefings, please contact : . . . He will
obtain answers and/or arrange those briefings.

Sincerely,

&ssociéﬁ@\fﬁfffal Counsel

~ HANDLE VI3 o ; JOINTLY
TOP-SECRET/, . o/ /MR
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: Ceniral Ince Agency
Washington, DC 20303
3 August 2004
To: | DOJ Command Center
' ¥or Dan Levin |
Organization; | Office of Legal Counsel
| U.B, Department of Justice
Phone: [ R .
¥ax: | DOJCC Btu-1H [ ]
From: - _
Organization: L - = D
‘ ") o = ~
y ne: | -
Fax:

Number of pages (including cover sheet); 3

Comments: (S/NF) Dan, A letter responding to the
questions you posed at yesterday's meeting, Thank you,

This information ”ﬂéﬁeﬂ] af'the Unkted Steves intended solely for the wwe of the endty or person vamed above and also may be attorgy-client
priviieged ov otherwise esarpt from dlsclorurs wniler applicable Ky, [ you are not the niended recfpient of this fecaimile, or the employes or
aget raspomaibie for deltvering the messaga fo the intended reciplent, you ars henby notified that vecelpt of this musstize is uof 8 WoPver or rolenss
of any appieabla privilegs or exemption from disclosure, and that review, disssoddnation, distribnation, ar eapying of iy communicasion ks strictly
prohibited. If you have received this materiol in error, plsase natify thiz ofiica at the above telsphons manber (caliact) for instructions regarding fis
saiurn or dastruction. Thankyon,
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Washingtan, M. w0508

5 August 2004

Tranamitted by Secure Facsimile
Dan Levin _

Aoting Assgistant Attorney Gensral
Office of Legal Counssl
Degpartment of Justice
Washington, DC 20530

Dear Mr. Levin:

é$47 yOC)  This letisr responds to the questions
you afid members of vour office raised in a meeting yesterday
with officers from the DCI Counterterrorist Center regarding use
of the waterboard as an interrogation technique. Specifically,
you asked whether the Agency had limits in place for the
duration of each application of water, for each session of the
waterboard, for how many waterboard sessions may be held in any
one day, and for how many days the waterboard technigque could be
applied. Anaswers to your questions follow.

(387, . .0C) Our guidelines,

a. -Approvals for use of the waterboazrd last for only 30
days. Duzing that 30-day period, the watarboard may not be used
on more than 20 days during that 30-day period. -

. The number of waterboard sesaions on a given day may
not excaed Iour.

c. A waterboard "sessilon" is the period of time in which a
subject is strapped to the waterboard before being removed, It
may involve multiple applications of water. You were informed
yesterday that our Office of Medical Services had established a
20-minute time limit for waterboard sessions. That was in

HANDLE VIA © JOINTLY
TOP SPERET/ YR
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RANDLE T2 . | JOINTLY

Dan Levin, Esq.

errcr. OMS has not established any time limit for a waterboard
sesaion, '

d. An “abplication“ during a waterboard session is the
time period in which water is poured on the cloth being held on
the subject's face. Under the DCI interrogation guidelines, the
time of total contact of water with the face will not exceed 40
saconds, Tha vast majority of applications are less than 40
seconds, many for fewer than 10 seconds. Individual
applications lasting 10 seconds or longer will be limited to no
more than 10 applications during any one waterboard session.

(U//FOU0) If you have any questions, or would like
briefings, please contact _ ., He will
obtain answers and/or arrange those brisfings.

S@nce:aly,

Associé%@\ffiffal Counsel

138
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U.S. Department of Justice

Office of Legal Counsel
Office of the Assistant Attomey General Washington, D.C. 20530
August 6, 2004
John A. Rizzo, Esq.
Acting General Counsel -
Central Intelligence Agency

Washington, D.C. 20505
Dear John:

This letter will confirm our advice that, although it is a close and
difficult question, the use of the waterboard technique in the contemplated interrogation of
Il utside territory subject to United States jurisdiction would not violate any United States
statute, including 18 U.S.C. § 2340A, nor would it violate the United States Constitution or any
ireaty obligation of the United States. We will supply, at a later date, an opinion that explains the
basis for this conclusion. Our advice is based on, and limited by, the following conditionS' '

1. The use of the techmque will conform to the description attached to your letter to me of
August 2, 2004 (*Rizzo Lctter”

2. A physician and psychologist will approve the use of the technique before each session, will
be present throughout the session, and will have authority to stop the use of the technique at any
time.

3. There is no material change in the medical and psychological facts and assessments set out in
the attachment to your August 2 letter, including that there are no medical or psychological
contraindications to the use of the technique as you plan to employ it oni

4. The technique will be used in no more than two sessions, of two hours each, per day. On each
day, the total time of the applications of the technique will not exceed 20 minutes. The period
over which the technique is used will not extend longer than 30 days, and the technique will not
be used on more than 15 days in this period. These limits are consistent with the Memorandum
for John A. Rizzo, Acting General Counsel, Central Intelligence Agency, from Jay S. Bybee,
Assistant Attorney General, Re: Interrogation of al Qaeda Operative (Aug. 1, 2002), and with
the previous uses of the technique, as they have been described to us. As we understand the
facts, the detainees previously subjected to the technique “are in good physiological and



psychological health,” see Rizzo Letter at 2, and they have not described the tcchnique as
physically painful. This understanding of the facts is material to our conclusion that the
technique, as limited in accordance with this letter, would not violate any statute of the United
States, : _

We express no opinion on any other uses of the technique, nor do we
address any techniques other than the waterboard or any conditions under whicbin‘ other
detainees are held. Furthermore, this letter does not constitute the Department of Justice’s policy
approval for use of the technique in this or any other case.

Sincerely,

B2
Daniel B, Levin
Acting Assistant Attorney General

rorsecee: | ~oror s






U.S. Department of Justice

Office of Legal Counsel
Office of the Assistant Attorney Genera) Washington, D.C. 20530

September 20, 2004

John A. Rizzo, Esq.

Acting General Counsel
Central Intelligence Agency
Washington, D.C. 20505

Dear John:

You have asked our advice regarding whether the use of twelve
particular mterrogatlon techniques (attention grasp, walling, facial hold, facial slap (insult slap),
cramped confinement, wall standing, stress positions, sleep deprivation, dietary manipulation,
nudity, water dousing, and abdominal slap) in the interrogation o#would violate
any United States statute (including 18 U.S.C. § 23404), the United States Constitution, or any
treaty obligation of the United States. We understand tha is an al- Qa’ida operative
who “is believed to be involved in the operational planning of an al-Qa’ida attack or attacks to
take place in the United States prior to the November 2004 elections.” September 19, 2004 letter
fro o Dan Levin. This letter confirms our advice that the use of these
techniques on outside territory subject to- United States jurisdiction would not violate

any of these provisions. We will supply, at a later date, an opinion that explains the basis for this
conclusion. Our advice is based on, and limited by, the following conditions:

1. The use of these techniques will conform to all represehtations previously made to us,
inchiding those listed in my August 26, 2004 letter to you. ’

2. The medical and psychological facts and assessments forEindicate that there
are no medical or psychological contraindications to the use of any of these techniques as you

plan to employ them.

3. Medical officers will be present to obscrve-whenever any enhanced
techniques are applied and will closely monitor him while he is subject to sleep deprivation or
dietary manipulation, in addition to the normal monitoring of him throughout his detention, to
ensure that he does not sustain any physical or mental barm.




TOP T NOFORNMR
M We express no opinion on any other uses of these techniques,

nor do we address any other techniques or any conditions under Whlch_or other
detainees are held. Furthermore, this letter does not constitute the Department of J ustlce s policy
approval for use of the techniques in this or any other case.

Sincerely,

Daniel Levin
Acting Assistant Attorney General
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U.>. Uepartment o1 Justce

Office of Legal Counsel
Office of the Assistant Attorney General Washington, D.C. 20530
August 26, 2004
John A. Rizzo, Esq.
Acting General Counsel
Central Intelligence Agency

Washington, D.C. 20505

Dear John:

You have asked our advice regarding whether the use of four

ould violate any United States statute
(including 18 U.S.C. § 2340A), the United States Constitution, or any treaty obligation of the
United States, We understand tha a high-value al Qaeda operative who is believed to
possess information concerning an imminent terrorist threat to the United States. This letter
confirms our advice that the use of these techniques utside territory subject to United
States jurisdiction would not violate any of these provisions. We will supply, at a later date, an
opinion that explains the basis for this conclusion, Our advice is based on, and limited by, the
following conditions:

e use of these techniques will conform to: (i) the representations made i
letters to me of July 30, 2004 (and attachment) and Angust 25, 2004; and (i1)- the

representations made by CIA officials, including representatives of the Office of Medical
Services, during our August 13, 2004 meeting, Based on that meeting, we understand that
ambient air temperature is the most important determinate for hypothermia in water dousing.
Additionally, we were informed that the Agency has based the safety margins set forth in its
water dousing procedures on experience with actual extended submersion in water of comparable
temperature. Thus, although water as cold as 41 degrees may be used for short periods of time,

particular interrogation techniques (diCtﬁ manipulation, nudity, water dousing, and abdominal

slaps) in the ongoing interrogation o

n view of these factors and the comparatively small amount of water used, especially compared

to submersion, we were advised that the dousing technique as it will be employed poses virtually
no risk of hypothermia or any other serious medical condition. We were further advised that the
dousing technique is designed to get the detainee’s attention and it is not intended to cause, and
does not cause, any appreciable pain.

2. There is no material change in the medical and psychological facts and assessments for



- techniques as you plan to employ them on

in the attachment to your August 2 letter, and i ugust 25, 2004,
letter, including that there are no medical orﬁcholo gical contraindications to the use of these

3. Medical officers will be present to observ-whcncver water dousing and/or
abdominal slaps are used and will closely monitor him while he is subject to dietary manipulation
(in addition to the normal monitoring of him throughout his detention) to ensure that he does not
sustain any physical or mental harm. This includes making sure tha an sustain a normal
body temperature after dousing and that his intake of fluids and nutrition are adequate,

4, We understand the statements i ugust 25, 2004, letter that the
measures are “designed .., to weake: hysical ability and mental desire to resist
interrogation over the long run” (Letter at 3), and that “water dousing sessions, in conjunction
with sleep deprivation, facilitates in weakening a detainee’s ability and motivation to resist
interrogations” (Letter at 4), to be consistent with the prior representations we have received —
ie., these techniques are not physically painful and are not intended to, or expected to, cause any
physical or psychological harm. Rather, they are intended to reduce esire to continue to
engage in the counter-interrogation techniques he has been utilizing to date. Indeed, you
consider these four techniques to be “more subtle” than some of the interrogation measures used
to date (Letter at 3.) ' ‘

nor do we address any techniques other than these four or any conditions under whic r
other detainees are held. Furthermore, this letter does not constitute the Department of Justice’s
policy approval for use of the techniques in this or any other case.

M We express no opinion on any other uses of these techniiucs,

Sincerely, :
Daniel Levin
Acting Assistant Attorney General
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Office of Legal Counsel

TO T NO
‘ Office of the Assistant Attorney General Washington, D.C. 20530
September 6, 2004

John A. Rizzo, Esq.

Acting General Counsel
Central Intelligence Agency
Washington, D.C. 20505

Dear John:

You have asked our advice regarding whether the use of twelve
particular interrogation techniques (attention grasp, walling, facial hold, facial slap (insult slap),
cramped confinement, wall standing, stress positions, sleep deprivation, dietary manipulation,
nudity, water dousing, and abdominal slap) in the interrogation o ould
violate any United States statute (including 18 U.S.C. § 2340A), the United States Constitution,
or any treaty obligation of the United States,. We understand thatlj s 20 al- Qa’ida
operative who “is believed to be involved in the operational planning of an al-Qa’ida attack or
attacks to take place i ited States prior to the November elections.” September 5, 2004

‘ letter fro 0 Dan Levin. This letter confirms our advice that the use of these

utside territory subject to United States jurisdiction would not violate any

.of these provisions. We will supply, at a later date, an opinion that explains the basis for this

conclusion. Our advice is based on, and limited by, the following conditions:

1. The use of these techniques will conform to all representations previously made to us, -
including those listed in my August 26, 2004 letter to you.

2. The medical and psychological facts and assessments for-indicate that there are
no medical or psychological contraindications to the use of any of these techniques as you plan to
employ them.

3. Medical officers will be present to observe-vhenevcr any enhanced techniques
are applied and will closely monitor him while he is subject to sleep deprivation or dietary
manipulation, in addition to the normal monitoring of him throughout his detention, to ensure that
he does not sustain any physical or mental harm.
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‘ M We express no opinion on any other uses of these techniques,

nor do we address any other techniques or any conditions under whic r other detainees
are held. Furthermore, this letter does not constitute the Department of Justice’s policy approval
for use of the techniques in this or any other case. '

Sincerely,

Daniel Levin
Acting Assistant Attorney General







U.S. Department of Justice

Office of Legal Counsel
Office of the Assistant Attorney Genera) Washington, D.C. 20530

September 20, 2004

John A. Rizzo, Esq.

Acting General Counsel
Central Intelligence Agency
Washington, D.C. 20505

Dear John:

You have asked our advice regarding whether the use of twelve
particular mter.rogatlon techniques (attention grasp, walling, facial hold, facial slap (insult slap),
cramped confinement, wall standing, stress positions, sleep deprivation, dietary manipulation,
nudity, water dousing, and abdominal slap) in the interrogation ol‘#would violate
any United States statute (including 18 U.S.C. § 2340A), the United States Constitution, or any
treaty obligation of the United States, We understand tha an al- Qa’ida operative
who “is believed to be involved in the operational planning of an al-Qa’ida attack or attacks to
take place in the United States prior to the November 2004 elections.” September 19, 2004 letter
fro 0 Dan Levin. This letter confirms our advice that the use of these
techniques on outside territory subject to United States jurisdiction would not violate

any of these provisions. We will supply, at a later date, an opinion that explains the basis for this
conclusion. Our advice is based on, and limited by, the following conditions:

1. The use of these techniques will conform to all representatlons previously made to us,
including those listed in my August 26, 2004 letter to you.

2. The medical and psychological facts and assessments forFmdlcate that there
are no medical or psychological contraindications to the use of any of these techniques as you

plan to employ them.

3. Medical officers will be present to obscrve-whencver any enhanced
techniques are applied and will closely monitor him while he is subject to sleep deprivation or
dietary manipulation, in addition to the normal monitoring of him throughout his detention, to
ensure that he does not sustam any physical or mental harm.




